2007-1 19m.03

LAFAYETTE PUBLIC TRUST FINANCING AUTHORITY

Lafayette, Louisiana

Financial Report

Year Ended March 31, 1999

under provisions of state law, this report is a public document. A copy of the report has been submitted to the audited, or reviewed, entity and other appropriate public officials. The report is available for public inspection at the Baton Rouge office of the Legislative Auditor and, where appropriate, at the office of the parish clerk of court

Release Date OCT 2 7 1999

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Independent Auditors' Report	1-2
GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (COMBINED STATEMENTS - OVERVIEW)	
Combined balance sheet - all fund types Comparative statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance - governmental fund type - General Fund	4
Comparative statement of revenues, expenses and changes in retained earnings - proprietary fund type - enterprise fund	5
Comparative statement of cash flows - proprietary fund type - enterprise fund	7.0
Notes to financial statements	7-8 9-20
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION	
SCHEDULES OF INDIVIDUAL FUND	
Enterprise Fund: Comparative combining balance sheet Comparative combining statement of revenues, expenses	23
and changes in retained earnings Schedule of general and administrative expenses	24 25
INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE	
Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards	27-28
Schedule of prior year findings	29

KOLDER, CHAMPAGNE, SLAVEN & RAINEY, LLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

C. Burton Kolder, CPA Russell F. Champagne, CPA Victor R. Slaven, CPA Chris Rainey, CPA Conrad O. Chapman, CPA P. Troy Courville, CPA

Penny Angelle Scruggins, CPA Mary T. Thibodeaux, CPA Gerald A. Thibodeaux, Jr., CPA Kelly M. Doucet, CPA Kenneth J. Rachal, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

234 Rue Beauregard Lafayette, LA 70508 Phone (318) 232-4141 Fax (318) 232-8660

113 East Bridge Street Breaux Bridge, LA 70517 Phone (318) 332-4020 Fax (318) 332-2867

133 East Waddil Marksville, LA 71351 Phone (318) 253-9252 Fax (318) 253-8681

1234 David Drive, Suite 105 Morgan City, LA 70380 Phone (504) 384-2020 Fax (504) 384-3020

> 408 W. Cotton Street Ville Platte, LA 70585 Phone (318) 363-2792 Fax (318) 363-3049

> 332 W. Sixth Avenue Oberlin, LA 70655 Phone (318) 639-4737 Fax (318) 639-4568

The Board of Trustees Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority Lafayette, Louisiana

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority, a component unit of the City/Parish Consolidated Government of Lafayette, Louisiana, primary government, as of March 31, 1999, and for the year then ended. These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of Trustees of the Authority. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, and <u>Government Auditing Standards</u>, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall general purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority as of March 31, 1999, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with <u>Government Auditing Standards</u>, we have also issued our report dated August 31, 1999 on our consideration of Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, and contracts.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying financial information listed under "Supplemental Information" in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial information for the preceding year, which is included for comparative purposes, was taken from the financial report for that year in which we expressed an unqualified opinion on the general purpose financial statements.

Kolder, Champagne, Slaven & Rainey, LLC
Certified Public Accountants

Lafayette, Louisiana August 31, 1999 GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (COMBINED STATEMENTS - OVERVIEW)

Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types March 31, 1999

	Governmental Fund Type	Proprietary Fund Type	Totals (Memorandum Only)	
	General Fund	Enterprise Fund	1999	1998
ASSETS				
Restricted assets:				
Cash	\$ 18	\$ -	\$ 18	\$ 8,457
Interest-bearing deposits	3,870,847	1,290,571	5,161,418	4,706,408
Investments	1,094,389	11,979,990	13,074,379	14,354,017
Accrued interest receivable	-	6,372	6,372	4,874
Mortgage loans receivable	-	3,792,875	3,792,875	4,865,192
Accrued interest receivable on loans	-	26,368	26,368	33,392
Total restricted assets	4,965,254	17,096,176	22,061,430	23,972,340
Deferred charges:				
Unamortized bond issue costs	<u> </u>	622,475	622,475	708,274
Total assets	\$4,965,254	\$17,718,651	\$22,683,905	\$24,680,614
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY				
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:				
Single family mortgage revenue bonds payable	\$ -	\$10,006,357	\$10,006,357	\$12,498,970
Less: Unaccreted discount	-	1,182,483	1,182,483	1,205,875
Net single family mortgage bonds				
outstanding (secured)	-	8,823,874	8,823,874	11,293,095
Accrued service fees	-	1,999	1,999	1,499
Accounts payable	1,584	-	1,584	559
Accrued interest on bonds		59,891	59,891	66,674
Total liabilities payable from				
restricted assets	1,584	8,885,764	8,887,348	11,361,827
Fund Equity:				
Retained earnings -				
Reserved for revenue bond retirement	-	8,832,887	8,832,887	8,404,884
Fund balance -				
Unreserved, designated	4,963,670	<u></u>	4,963,670	4,913,903
Total fund equity	4,963,670	8,832,887	13,796,557	13,318,787
Total liabilities and fund equity	\$4,965,254	\$17,718,651	\$22,683,905	\$24,680,614

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Governmental Fund Type - General Fund Years Ended March 31, 1999 and 1998

	1999	1998
Revenues:		
Interest on interest-bearing deposits		
and investments	\$ 299,368	\$ 306,620
Servicer fee income	67,688	5,595
Total revenues	367,056	312,215
Expenditures:		
Current -		
General government:		
Legal fees	5,677	10,057
Accounting and auditing	9,960	5,495
Administrative fees - City of Lafayette	932	957
Miscellaneous	720	870
Appropriation - Lafayette Consolidated Government -		
First Time Home Buyers Program	300,000	52,000
Total expenditures	317,289	69,379
Excess of revenues over expenditures	49,767	242,836
Fund balance, beginning	4,913,903	4,671,067
Fund balance, ending	\$4,963,670	\$4,913,903

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

-- -- -- --- ---

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings Proprietary Fund Type Enterprise Fund Years Ended March 31, 1999 and 1998

	1999	1998
Operating revenues:		
Interest on loans	\$ 358,953	\$ 472,578
Interest on interest-bearing deposits		
and investments	1,026,485	1,277,955
Miscellaneous income		1,070
Total operating revenues	1,385,438	1,751,603
Operating expenses:		
Interest on bonds	807,577	978,740
Amortization of bond issue cost	85,798	75,685
Foreclosure and real estate owned expenses	-	9,064
General and administrative expenses	64,060	73,558
Total operating expenses	957,435	1,137,047
Operating income	428,003	614,556
Retained earnings, beginning	8,404,884	7,790,328
Retained earnings, ending	\$ 8,832,887	\$ 8,404,884

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

.

.

Comparative Statement of Cash Flows Proprietary Fund Type Enterprise Fund Years Ended March 31, 1999 and 1998

	1999	1998
Cash flows from operating activities: Operating income	\$ 428,003	\$ 614,556
		
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net		
cash provided by operating activities -		
Amortization of bond issue cost	85,798	75,683
Accretion of discount on investments	(424,697)	(603,536)
Accretion of bond discount	23,392	23,462
Changes in assets and liabilities:		
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable	5,526	5,699
Decrease in accrued service fees	500	(309)
Decrease in accrued interest		
on bonds payable	(6,783)	(23,040)
Total adjustments	(316,264)	(522,041)
Net cash provided by operating		
activities	111,739	92,515
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:		
Principal collected on mortgage loans	1,072,317	1,066,858
Principal paid on revenue bonds	(2,492,613)	(2,187,031)
Net cash used by noncapital		
financing activities	(1,420,296)	(1,120,173)
Cash flows from investing activities:		
Principal collected on mortgage-backed		
securities	1,374,439	1,311,334
Net purchase of investments	(15,692)	(104,865)
Net cash provided by		
investing activities	1,358,747	1,206,469
Net increase in cash		
cash equivalents	50,190	178,811
•	20,120	170,011
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period	1,240,381	1,061,570
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$1,290,571	\$ 1,240,381
		(continued)

Comparative Statement of Cash Flows (Continued) Proprietary Fund Type Enterprise Fund Years Ended March 31, 1999 and 1998

Supplemental disaboures of annh flow informations	1999	1998
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:		
Cash paid during the period -		
Interest	\$ 814,360	\$ 1,001,780
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents per		
statement of cash flows to the balance sheet:		
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period -		
Cash - restricted	\$ -	\$ 45
Interest-bearing deposits - restricted	1,240,381	1,061,525
Less: Interest-bearing deposits with a		, ,
maturity of over three months	-	-
Total cash and cash equivalents	1,240,381	1,061,570
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period -		
Cash - restricted	_	_
Interest bearing deposits - restricted	1,290,571	1,240,381
Less: Interest-bearing deposits with a		, ,
maturity over three months	-	_
Total cash and cash equivalents	1,290,571	1,240,381
Net increase	\$ 50,190	\$ 178,811
		=

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Notes to Financial Statements

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority (Authority) is a political subdivision of the state of Louisiana. The Authority was formed as a public trust on January 16, 1979 pursuant to Chapter 2-A of Title 9 of the Louisiana revised statutes. The beneficiary of the trust is the Lafayette City-Parish Consolidated Government, Louisiana. The Authority was created for the purpose of providing financing for residential facilities to low and moderate income families within the Parish of Lafayette. The Authority's governing body is comprised of a board of five trustees.

The accounting and reporting policies of the Authority conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments. Such accounting and reporting procedures also conform to the requirements of Louisiana Revised Statutes 24:513 and to the industry audit guide, <u>Audits of State and Local Governmental Units</u>.

The following is a summary of certain significant accounting policies:

A. Financial Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the Authority includes all funds and activities that are controlled by the Authority as an independent political subdivision of the State of Louisiana. The Authority is a component unit of the Lafayette City-Parish Consolidated Government, the primary government. Although legally separate from the Lafayette City-Parish Consolidated Government, the following factors were considered in deciding that the Authority is a component unit of the Lafayette City-Parish Consolidated Government, Louisiana:

- 1. The trustees of the Authority shall be appointed by the governing authority of the Lafayette City-Parish Consolidated Government.
- 2. All proposed by-laws and any amendments thereto need to be approved by the governing authority of the Lafayette City-Parish Consolidated Government.
- No debt obligations may be issued or moneys borrowed without the prior consent of the governing authority of the Lafayette City-Parish Consolidated Government.
- 4. No bonds of the Trust shall be delivered without the prior approval of the governing authority of the Lafayette City-Parish Consolidated Government.

This report includes the component unit financial statements of the Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority, which does not include the oversight unit (Lafayette City-Parish Consolidated Government) financial statements.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B. Fund Accounting

The accounts of the Authority are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, retained earnings/fund equity, revenues, and expenses. Resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending is to be controlled. The various funds are grouped, in the financial statements in this report, into two generic fund types and two broad fund categories as follows:

Governmental Fund -

General Fund

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Authority. It is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Proprietary Fund -

Enterprise Fund

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including amortization of bond issue costs) of providing services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.

C. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

The governmental fund is accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they become measurable and available as net current assets. Interest on interest-bearing deposits and investments is recognized when earned and available.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

The proprietary fund is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Its revenues are recognized when they are earned and expenses are recognized when they are incurred. All applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 are applied unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.

D. Investments

Statutes authorize the Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority to invest in certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, passbook savings accounts, bankers' acceptances, and other available bank investments provided that approved securities are pledged to secure those funds on deposit in an amount of those funds. In addition, the Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority can invest in direct debt securities of the United States unless such an investment is expressly prohibited by law. Investments are stated at cost, increased by the accretion of discounts.

E. Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the statement of eash flows, the Enterprise Fund considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

F. Vacation, Sick Leave and Pension Plan

The Authority had no employees during the year ended March 31, 1998; therefore, it did not have a policy on vacation and sick leave, nor did it have a pension plan.

G. Amortization

Amortization of bond issue costs is based on the total outstanding bonds divided by the sum of the bonds outstanding as of the beginning of the present year. This method does not materially differ from the interest method required by generally accepted accounting principles.

H. <u>Loans Receivable</u>

Loans are carried at amounts advanced less payments collected. Interest on loans is accrued monthly as earned.

I. Bonds Payable

Bonds payable are stated at maturity value less unaccreted discount.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

J. Comparative Data

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented in the accompanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the Authority's financial position and operations. However, comparative (i.e., presentation of prior year totals by fund type) data have not been presented in each of the statements since their inclusion would make the statements unduly complex and difficult to read.

K. Total Columns on Combined Statements - Overview

Total columns on the Combined Statements - Overview are captioned Memorandum Only to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial position, results of operations, or changes in financial position in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund climinations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.

(2) Bond Restrictions

A. 1990 Bond Issue

The accounts to be held by the Trustee are the collection account, revenue account, debt service account, redemption account, preservation account and rebate account.

Collection Account -

The collection account will be used to pay for items in the following order: As defined by Section 5.07 of the bond indenture, monies in excess of non-mortgage earnings will be transferred to the rebate account. Monthly bond interest and principal will also be paid. The collection account will also use its funds to supplement the debt service account for any deficiencies in its reserve requirement. If excess monies exist after the payment of the aforementioned, the remainder shall be transferred to the revenue account. The sources of monies for the collection account will be payments of principal on mortgage loans including regularly scheduled principal payments, principal prepayments, recoveries of principal through foreclosure and insurance settlements.

Revenue Account -

The revenue account will be used to pay for certain expenses on April 1 and October 1 of each year, commencing April 1, 1995. These expenses include trustee's fees, premiums on the special hazard and performance bond insurance policies as well as other program expenses. If a balance exists in excess of \$25,000 on October 2 of each year, beginning October 2, 1993, the balance will be transferred to the redemption account. If a deficiency exists in the revenue account, as related to payment of expenses, monies will be transferred from the debt service account.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Debt Service Account -

The debt service account will be used to supplement the collection account and revenue account if monetary deficiencies exist. Any monies in excess of the debt service reserve requirement shall be transferred to the revenue account.

Redemption Account -

The redemption account will be used to pay for the unpaid principal plus accrued interest as related to the redeeming of bonds. Unpaid principal plus accrued interest will be paid from the redemption account provided not less than a single bond is called per redemption.

Preservation Account -

The preservation account is to be used solely for the payment of foreclosure expenses. The source of monies for the preservation account will be reimbursements of foreclosure expenses from insurance settlements.

Rebate Account -

The rebate account is not subject to the pledge of the bond indenture. Annually, a rebate analyst will calculate the excess nonmortgage earnings and transfer those earnings from the Collection Account to the Rebate Account. In accordance with the bond indenture and Section 143 of the Internal Revenue Code, ninety percent of the monies held by the rebate account will be disbursed to the United States of America beginning September 1, 1997 and every five years thereafter.

B. 1991 Bond Issues

The accounts to be held by the Trustee are the collection account, expense account, liquidity reserve account, debt service reserve account, and preservation account.

Collection Account -

The collection account will account for all pledged revenues and amounts transferred from the debt service reserve account and liquidity reserve account. Monies shall be used to pay interest and principal on the bonds and transfer to the expense account an amount equal to one-twelfth of .30 percent per annum of the aggregate principal amount of Series B mortgage loans outstanding per month.

Expense Account -

The expense account will account for all amounts transferred from the collection account to pay miscellaneous program expenses such as trustee fees, insurance premiums, independent accountants fees, etc.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Liquidity Reserve Account -

The liquidity reserve account shall account for investment earnings on amounts deposited from the bond proceeds. Investment earnings shall be transferred to the collection account and in the event that amounts on deposit in the collection account are insufficient to pay the principal or interest due on the bonds, the amount of such insufficiency shall be transferred from the liquidity reserve account.

Debt Service Reserve Account -

The debt service reserve account shall account for interest earned on amounts deposited from the bond proceeds. Interest earned on such amounts shall be retained and in the event that amounts in the collection account, the liquidity reserve account and the expense account are insufficient to pay the principal and interest due on the bonds, the amount of such insufficiency shall be transferred from the debt service reserve account.

Preservation Account -

The preservation account shall account for interest earned on amounts deposited from the bond proceeds and amounts received under the mortgage guaranty insurance policy which represent principal and interest on the relevant mortgage loan. Amounts will be disbursed for liquidation and preservation expenses incurred prior to the acquisition of a property.

(3) Investments

A summary of restricted assets by accounts at March 31, 1999 is as follows:

		Interest- Bearing		Accrued Interest
Accounts	Cash	Deposits	Investments	Receivable_
Liquidity reserve	\$ -	\$ 603,093	\$ -	\$2,229
Expense	-	124,221	56,393	459
Lafayette City-Parish	18	3,870,847	1,094,389	_
Debt service	-	_	5,361,526	-
Revenue	-	283,662	337,498	3,119
Preservation	-	84,713	- -	313
Collection	-	183,051	5,683,199	229
Redemption		11,831	541,374	<u>23</u>
Totals	<u>\$ 18</u>	<u>\$5,161,418</u>	<u>\$13,074,379</u>	<u>\$6,372</u>

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A recap of investments at March 31, 1999 by each bond restricted asset type follows:

	Cost	Accreted Discount	Carrying Value	Face Amount	Unaccreted Discount
Expense account	\$ 56,393	\$ -	\$ 56,393	\$ 157,000	\$ 100,607
Lafayette City-	Ψ Ψτ,στ	•	4	,,	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
Parish	1,094,389	-	1,094,389	1,094,389	*
Debt service			•		
Account	2,960,713	2,400,813	5,361,526	19,221,128	13,859,602
Revenue account	337,498	-	337,498	337,498	-
Collection account	5,683,199	-	5,683,199	5,683,199	-
Redemption	541,374		541,374	541,374	<u></u>
Totals	\$10,673,566	\$2,400,813	<u>\$13,074,379</u>	\$28,829,670	\$13,960,209

The Authority's investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the entity at year-end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the Authority or its agent in the Authority's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker's or dealer's trust department or agent in the Authority's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust department or agent but not in the authority's name.

The March 31, 1999, carrying amount of the securities which constitute the investments listed above are summarized as follows:

	Carrying Amount	Category
FNMA - Zero coupon bonds	\$ 5,240,398	1
FNMA - Mortgage-backed securities	6,777,588	1
U.S. Government obligations	56,393	1
Hathaway investment agreement	1,000,000]
Total		
	<u>\$13,074,379</u>	

Marketable investment securities are carried at cost plus accreted discount.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

The carrying value and estimated market values of investments are as follows as of March 31, 1999:

Accounts	Carrying Amount	Gross Unrealized Gains	Gross Unrealized Losses	Estimated Market Value
FNMA - Zero coupon bonds	\$ 5,240,398	\$2,290,914	\$ -	\$ 7,531,312
FNMA – Mortgage-backed Securities	6,777,588	200,414	_	6,978,002
U.S. Government obligations	56,393	53,278	-	109,671
Hathaway investment Agreement	1,000,000		-	1,000,000
Totals	\$13,074,379	\$2,544,606	<u>\$ - </u>	<u>\$15,618,985</u>

(4) <u>Loans Receivable</u>

Loans receivable consists of single family residential first mortgages. All first mortgages are pledged as security for the payment of principal and interest on the bonds payable. The loans are also covered by a mortgage trust insurance covering loss resulting from a borrower's default up to 80% of the fair market value of all insured mortgage agreements.

All loans are serviced by outside banks and financial institutions, and all payments are remitted to the Authority's trustee at the end of each month.

(5) Unamortized Bond Issue Costs

Unamortized bond issue cost at March 31, 1998	\$708,274
Less: Amortization for the year ended March 31, 1999	_(85,799)
Total unamortized bond issue costs at March 31, 1999	<u>\$622,475</u>

(6) Real Estate Owned

The Authority acquires real estate through adjudication (which was foreclosed upon and adjudicated back to the Authority at sheriff's sale) and is carried at the principal outstanding on the loan prior to acquisition by the Authority net of insurance reimbursement. There was no real estate owned at March 31, 1999.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

(7) Bonds Payable

- A. The single family mortgage revenue refunding bonds 1990 Series A are dated September 1, 1990, original principal of \$10,500,000 bearing interest at 8.5 percent per annum. Principal and interest are payable on the fifteenth day of each month, interest accruing from the first day to the last day of the month prior to payment date. The bond indenture indicates that monthly principal and interest payments are calculated on the monthly collections of mortgage loan principal, suggesting no available maturity schedule for future payments. The bonds are redeemable at the option of the issuer on any payment dated on or after September 15, 2000. Payment will be equal to 100 percent of the unpaid principal plus accrued interest to date.
- B. Taxable refunding bond series 1991A, Class A-1, Class A-2 and A-3, in the aggregate principal of \$16,500,000. The Class A-1 and A-2 bonds bear interest at 7.5 percent per annum. Interest on the Class A-1 and A-2 bonds are payable monthly on the first calendar day of each month, interest accruing from the first day of the month through and including the last day of the month for the second month prior to each interest payment date. The Class A-3 bonds accrue interest at 9.25 percent beginning on the date of issuance until the date of maturity, which is July 10, 2014. Principal payments on the Class A-1 bonds will be made on each interest payment date from funds remaining in the collection account after payment of interest on the Class A-1 and A-2 bonds. Principal payments will be applied first to pay principal on the Class A-1 bonds until all Class A-1 bonds have been paid in full before such funds are applied to pay the principal of the remaining classes of bonds. The maturity amount of the Class A-3 bonds will be payable on July 10, 2014.

Taxable refunding bonds series 1991B, Class B-1 and Class B-2, in the aggregate principal of \$4,735,000. The Class B-1 bonds bear interest at 7.375 percent per annum. Interest on the Class B-1 bonds are payable monthly on the first calendar day of each month, interest accruing from the first day of the month through and including the last day of the month for the second month prior to each interest payment date. Principal payments on the Class B-1 bonds will be made on each interest payment date, only from funds available after payment of interest on such bonds and the transfer to the expense account of one-twelfth of .30 percent of the aggregate principal amount of bonds outstanding per month. The payment of the Class B-2 maturity amount, which includes interest bearing 9.5 percent and principal, will be payable on July 10, 2014.

C. The Series 1995 single family mortgage revenue bonds were dated February 1, 1995, original principal of \$15,000,000 bearing an interest rate varying from 5.5 to 6.875 percent. Payment of principal and interest was to begin February 1, 1999 and continue annually to a final maturity date of February 1, 2027. The 1995 bonds were redeemed by the Authority in February 1997.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

The following is a summary of bond transactions of the Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority for the year ended March 31, 1999:

Net Bonds payable, beginning of year	\$11,293,095
Add: Discount accreted	23,392
Less: Bonds retired	(2,492,613)
Net Bonds payable, end of year	<u>\$ 8,823,874</u>

Principal outstanding on all bonds as of March 31, 1999 are as follows:

1990 Bond Issue	\$ 2,408,857
1991 Bond Issue:	
Class A-1	968,099
Class A-2	4,800,000
Class A-3	500,000
Class B-1	929,401
Class B-2	400,000
	\$10,006,3 <u>57</u>

Based upon the terms of the bond debentures, the 1990 and 1991 bond issues have no stated maturity schedules, therefore the sinking fund requirements for all long-term borrowings for each of the five years following the balance sheet date and to maturity as required by the Financial Accounting Standards Board's (FASB) Statement 47 cannot be disclosed.

(8) <u>Litigation</u>

There was no litigation pending against the Authority as of March 31, 1999.

(9) Compensation of Board of Trustees

The Board of Trustees of the Authority receives no compensation and are only reimbursed for their expenses incurred relating to the Authority's business, which must have appropriate supporting documentation.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

(10) Prior Years' Debt Defeasance

In prior years, the Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority has defeased various bond issues by creating irrevocable trust funds. New debt has been issued and the proceeds have been used to purchase U. S. government securities that were placed in the trust funds. The investments and fixed earnings from the investments are sufficient to fully service the defeased debt until the debt is called or matures. For financial reporting purposes, the debt has been considered defeased and therefore removed as a liability from the Authority's financial statements. As of March 31, 1999, the amount of defeased debt outstanding but removed from the financial statements amounted to \$34,970,000.

(11) Intergovernmental Agreement

Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority entered into an agreement with the Lafayette City-Parish Consolidated Government, beneficiary of Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority, whereas the Authority will transfer monies to the City and the City shall maintain said monies for the benefit of the Authority. Unless directed otherwise, the City shall invest all funds in such a manner to maximize income from such funds that can safely be earned within the confines of law. The City shall disburse funds only upon directions of the Authority as evidenced by requisitions signed by the Authority's chairman. All requisitions in excess of five thousand dollars must be executed by both the chairman and secretary-treasurer of the Authority. The Authority shall reimburse the City annually an amount to be determined by the City's cost allocation plan for such services. As of March 31, 1999 the City is managing interest-bearing deposits and investments totaling \$4,965,236, which is reflected in the financial statements of the Authority.

(12) Cooperative Endeavor Agreement

On January 31, 1996, the Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority and the Louisiana Housing Finance Agency entered into a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement. The Agreement acknowledges the Authority's initial investment of \$280,000 associated with the issuance of the 1995 bond issue and states that certain assets transferred to the trustee for the 1997A bond issue from the trustee of the 1995 bond issue will be used in such a manner to permit mortgage loans to be financed within the jurisdiction of the Authority and to finance the recovery of the Authority's initial investment. The recovery of such initial investment by the Authority, however, is contingent upon the fact that the LHFA does not incur any costs which are not recoverable from the previously mentioned transferred assets. The potential recoverability of the \$280,000 has not been accrued as a receivable in the financial statements in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement (FASB) No. 5 "Accounting for Contingencies". FASB No. 5 states that gain contingencies are ordinarily not recorded until they are actually realized. The Authority received \$67,688 during the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999 and \$5,595 during the fiscal year ended March 31, 1998.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

(13) Joint Cooperative Agreement

Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority entered into an agreement with the Lafayette City-Parish Consolidated Government, whereas the Authority agreed to provide funds totaling \$250,000 on an "as requested" basis for the purpose of establishing and implementing a low interest revolving loan program to assist first time homebuyers in the Parish of Lafayette. Eligible participants may receive up to \$5,000, to be repaid at an interest rate of five percent (5%) per year for a loan term not to exceed fifteen (15) years. The funds may be used only for the purposes of offsetting closing costs and/or as a down payment.

This agreement commenced on the 5th day of February, 1998 and automatically renews on a calendar year basis for successive terms of one year unless either party provides written notice of its intent to terminate. In the event of termination, Lafayette City-Parish Consolidated Government is obligated to distribute any funds collected as repayments from borrowers and/or remaining and available in program accounts to the Authority.

The Authority has funded this program in the amount of \$352,000. \$300,000 was funded during the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999 and \$52,000 was funded during the fiscal year ended March 31, 1998.

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

.

•

- - ----

SCHEDULES OF INDIVIDUAL FUND

Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority Lafayette, Louisiana

Comparative Combining Balance Sheet - Enterprise Fund March 31, 1999 and 1998

Totals

1991 Bond Issue

1990 Bond Issue

ASSETS	1999	1998	1999	1998	1999	8661
Restricted assets: Interest-bearing deposits	\$ 315,019	\$ 283,134	\$ 975,552	\$ 957,247	\$ 1,290,571	\$ 1,240,381
Investments	1,000,000	971,057	10,979,990	11,942,982	11,979,990	12,914,039
Accrued interest receivable	3,237	1,350	3,135	3,524	6,372	4,874
Mortgage Ioans receivable	2,422,215	3,082,121	1,370,660	1,783,071	3,792,875	4,865,192
Accrued interest receivable on loans	17,766	21,343	8,602	12,049	26,368	33,392
Total restricted assets	3,758,237	4,359,005	13,337,939	14,698,873	17,096,176	19,057,878
Deferred charges: Unamortized bond issue costs	89,046	113,769	533,429	594,505	622,475	708,274
Total Assets	\$3,847,283	\$4,472,774	\$13,871,368	\$15,293,378	\$17,718,651	\$19,766,152
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY						
Liabilities payable from restricted assets: Single family mortgage revenue bonds payable	\$2,408,857	\$3,065,785	\$ 7,597,500	\$ 9,433,185	\$10,006,357	\$12,498,970
Less: Unaccreted discount	•		1,182,483	1,205,875	1,182,483	1,205,875
Net single family mortgage bonds outstanding (secured)	2,408,857	3,065,785	6,415,017	8,227,310	8,823,874	11,293,095
Accrued services fees	572	910	1,427	589	1,999	1,499
Accrued interest on bonds	17,063	21,720	42,828	44,954	168,65	66,674
Total liabilities payable from restricted assets	2,426,492	3,088,415	6,459,272	8,272,853	8.885,764	11,361,268
Fund equity:						
Retained earnings - Reserved for revenue bond retirement	1,420,791	1.384.359	7,412,096	7 020 525	8 832 887	8 404 884
		70061 D.061	2000000	7,727,7	100.4000	100,100,00
Total liabilities and fund equity	\$3,847,283	\$4,472,774	\$13,871,368	\$15,293,378	\$17,718,651	\$19,766,152

Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority Lafayette, Louisiana

Comparative Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings Enterprise Fund

1998
and
1999
131,
Aarch
nded N
ears En
Yea

	1990 B	1990 Bond Issue	1991 Bc	1991 Bond Issue	To	Totals
	1999	1998	1999	1998	1999	1998
Operating revenues:						
Interest on loans	\$ 223,166	\$ 319,933	\$ 135,787	\$ 152,645	\$ 358,953	\$ 472,578
Interest on interest-bearing deposits						
and investments	80,374	61,008	946,111	1,216,947	1,026,485	1,277,955
Miscellaneous income	•	1,070	1	•	1	1,070
Total operating revenues	303,540	382,011	1,081,898	1,369,592	1,385,438	1,751,603
Operating expenses:						
Interest on bonds	224,000	294,479	583,577	684,261	807,577	978,740
Amortization of bond issue cost	24,723	28,227	61,075	47,458	85,798	75,685
Foreclosure and real estate owned expenses	1	9,064	•	•	•	9,064
General and administrative expenses	18,385	27,601	45,675	45,957	64,060	73,558
Total operating expenses	267,108	359,371	690,327	777,676	957,435	1,137,047
Operating income	36,432	22,640	391,571	916,165	428,003	614,556
Retained earnings, beginning	1,384,359	1,361,719	7,020,525	6,428,609	8,404,884	7,790,328
Retained earnings, ending	\$1,420,791	\$ 1,384,359	\$ 7,412,096	\$ 7,020,525	\$8,832,887	\$ 8,404,884

Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority Lafayette, Louisiana Enterprise Fund

Schedule of General and Administrative Expenses Year Ended March 31, 1999 With Comparative Totals for March 31, 1998

	Bond Issues		Totals	
	1990	1991	1999	1998
Accretion of bond discount	\$ -	\$23,392	\$23,392	\$23,461
Mortgage insurance	4,915	3,424	8,339	8,966
Accounting and auditing	-	5,000	5,000	8,790
Servicing fees	8,504	6,859	15,363	19,528
Trustee fees	2,966	7,000	9,966	10,758
Miscellaneous	2,000		2,000	2,055
Total	\$18,385	\$45,675	\$64,060	\$73,558

INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE

KOLDER, CHAMPAGNE, SLAVEN & RAINEY, LLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

C. Burton Kolder, CPA Russell F. Champagne, CPA Victor R. Slaven, CPA Chris Rainey, CPA Conrad O. Chapman, CPA P. Troy Courville, CPA

Penny Angelle Scruggins, CPA Mary T. Thibodeaux, CPA Gerald A. Thibodeaux, Jr., CPA Kelly M. Doucet, CPA Kenneth J. Rachal, CPA 234 Ruo Beauregard Lafayette, LA 70508 Phone (318) 232-4141 Fax (318) 232-8660

113 East Bridge Street Breaux Bridge, LA 70517 Phone (318) 332-4020 Fax (318) 332-2867

133 East Waddil Marksville, LA 71351 Phone (318) 253-9252 Fax (318) 253-8681

1234 David Drive, Suite 105 Morgan City, LA 70380 Phone (504) 384-2020

> 408 W. Cotton Street Ville Platte, LA 70586 Phone (318) 363-2792 Fax (318) 363-3049

Fax (504) 384-3020

332 W. Sixth Avenue Oberlin, LA 70655 Phone (318) 639-4737 Fax (318) 639-4568

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Trustees
Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority
Lafayette, Louisiana

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority, a component unit of the Lafayette City-Parish Consolidated Government, Louisiana, primary government, for the year ended March 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated August 31, 1999. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority's general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority's internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the general purpose financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operations that we consider to be material weaknesses.

- -- -- -- -- -- -- ----

This report is intended for the information of the Board of Trustees. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

Kolder, Champagne, Slaven & Rainey, LLC
Certified Public Accountants

Lafayette, Louisiana August 31,1999

Lafayette Public Trust Financing Authority

Schedule of Prior Year Findings March 31, 1999

There were no findings and/or management comments mentioned in the March 31, 1998 audit that required follow-up procedures.